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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
The Queen Anne's County Court House is located

in the center of Court House Sguare in Centreville.
The square is bounded on the east by North Commerce
Street, on the north by Broadway, on the west by
North Liberty Street, and on the south by Lawyers
Row. This square was originally described as the
Public Ground and has been the site of theCourt
House since the town was laid out in 1792,

The Court House faces east toward Commerce
Street, It is a brick building with a three part
facade, and has been enlarged to the rear to form
the present T-plan. The front facade consists of a
five bay, two story center block with flanking two
bay, two story wings. Evidently the center block
was two rooms deep, while the wings were one room
deep. When the Court House was renovated in 1876,
the building was enlarged by doubling the depth of
the wings and by adding a two story rear wing to
the central block, forming the present T-plan.

The front facade of the main block is five bays
wide, with the three center bays set forward about
four inches from the rest of the wall. A pedimented

gable is centered above these three bays,

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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7.1 DESCRIPTION

inéreasing the sense of frontality. The principal
-entrance dobr is céntered on this part of the facade,
flanked.by iarge 6/6 windows on each side. There

are matching 6/6 windows in the north and south bays, -
flanking the projecfing po;tion of the wali. On the
ﬁsécpnd floor, five 6/6-windowé with segmentally arched
upper sash are arranged in similar fashion. These
-windows clearly date to the 1876 renovation, but
probably reflect the origina; fenestration pattern.
The jambs of most of the openings appear to be reworked,
" ~and were presumably enlarged for the present windows.
Carefully dressed stone sills-with'beveled surfaces
and iintels with chamfered edges also date to the

1876 work.  On the second story, the stonework forms

a plain belt course and is carried across the tops of
“the windows, forming a peak above -each arched opening.
Other changes include an added water table constructed
pf smooth machine madelbrick laid in stretcher bond
with a two-éourse beveled cap, and a cast iron balcony
across the center three bays of the second story. |
The late léfh century bfickwork'is_in stark contrast
.“to the original work, which is carefully laid in
”Flemiéh bond with hand-made bricks. An original
four-coﬁrse belt course at the base of the second

story has been interrupted by the énlarged second story
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- addition of the stonework around the openings. The ' !
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7.2 DESCRIPTION

-windovws. A héavily molded cornice with large scrolled i
-modillion blocks is carried across the entire facade |
-.of the central block and up the raked eaves of the

pedimented gable. 1In the center of this pediment, a

-circuiér wooden panel with a carved figure of an eagle

is set into a circular opening 'in the brickwork. This

feature is of uncertain vintage, but certainly dates

to the 1876 period at leasg,-and may be early if not g
=ori§ina1. | |

The south flanking wing serves as the Clerk of the

Court's office. There is a door in the center on the
first floor flanked by single 6/6 windows on each side,
and two 6/6 windows on thé second floor. The first
~f£loor openings have also been fitted with dressed
stone sills and lintels, and the'sécond floor openings
with stone sills, leaving the original splayed jack
arch lintels visible jusi below the cornice. The
original Flemish bond brickwork remains felatively

 uﬁdisturbed except for the applied water table, and the

sills of the second story windows cut down into the top
“course of‘aﬁ original three-course Selt course,

*Thg cornice on this section of the building is boxed
in with a plain frieze board below the soffit and a

~complex crown mold above.
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7.3 DESCRIPTION

‘The south gable wall of the south wing offers

clear evidence of the 1876 enlargement. A seam runs

“vertically up the center of this wall, with Flemish

-bond brickwork to the east and six-course bond using

~smooth machine-made bricks to the west. The water

table added in 1876 was also carried across the south |
gable. There are two original 6/6 windows with later
granite sills on the first floor of the original wing,
"and.one 6/6 window on the second floor of the west

addition. The box cornice of the front and rear facade

. returns at the corners and is carried up the gable eaves,

The rear or west facade of the wing dates entirely
to 1876. There is a singie 6/6 window centered on both
“the first and second floor. The first floor window is
-fitted with heavy iron ;hutters. éhe brickwork is
laid in ranéom common bond with a water table:; the

cornice matches the front and south wall.

The north flanking wing serves as the Register

of Wills office. There is a door in the south bay on

the first floor with a 6/6 window to the north and two

6/6 windows. on the second flbor.' In detail this

Wing is virtually identical to the south wing.

““The north gable wall of the north wing evidently

~ﬂasloriginaily uninterrupted by windows. The brickwork

is laid in Flemish bond and the general line of the

>
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7.4 DESCRIPTION

;original gable remains visible. In 1876 this wing

‘was doubled in depth. The seam between the original

section and the addition is clearly visible, and the
jater brickwork is laid in common bond with machine-
ﬁade'brick. A water téble was also added, extending
acrbss the entire gable wall. A lafge 2/2 window was
cut in near the center on the first floor and a small,
paired four-light window waé added on the second

fioor. The gable eaves are closed in with an over;hot N
box cornice that returns at the corners, and matches
Atﬁe cornice on the'front facade of the wing.

Phe rear facade of the north wing dates entirely
to 1876. There are ton6/6 windows on both the first
and second floors. The openings have segmental arched
lintels and granite sills. , The brickwork is laid in
si#-course bond with a water table; the cornice matches
the front facade of the wing.

The rear or west wing was constructed in 1876.
The brickwork is laid in six-course bord but without a
waﬁer table. On the north wall, there are three 6/6
windows on each floor. The south wall is essentially
identical, except that the east window on the first
‘floor has been blocked. On the west wall, facing

Liberty Street, there is a recessed panel in the center

‘bay on each floor flanked by two 6/6 windows on each side.
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All of the window openings‘ have segmental arched lintels
and granite sills. The cornice is a continuation of
the early modillion block cornice found on the front

and side walls of the original central block. Mitred

" seams in the cornice correspond to the original rear

wall of the building. The roof of the rear addition is
hipped and covered with slate.

The interior of the dburt House is divided into

three principal areas on the first floor. A central
hall in the main block leads back to office space in

the later rear wing, and to a narrow stair leading to -

the cellar and a modern records room. The stair to

the second floor rises against the north wall of the
hall, just inside thefront door. It is an open-string
stair with a hewn Victorian newel, turned ballusters and
a.molded rail. All of the trim in the hall dates to

the Victorian period, with the possible exception of

the front double doors, which are constructed of -

diagonal beaded boards with a heavily molded frame

" applied to the exterior surface.

The Clerk's office, to the south of the hall,
occupies the original south wing and a second large
room to the west that was added in 1876. The latter

room was evidently intended as a vault, as the windows

- are shuttered with heavy iron shutters, and the interior
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door opening is fitted with a heavy vault door with a

lock made in Baltimore. The floors in both rooms are

--paved'with brick, all of the trim is Victorian.

“The Register of Wills office occupies the north

wing, and cannot be reached from.the central hall. This

office is divided into a large room in the wing, with

a parrow vault across the north end of the Court House,

&

‘Phe floor of the vault is lined with brick; the ceiling

is vaulted. A door at the west end of the office opens .

_into the vault and is fitted with a heavy vault door.

All of the trim is Victorian. A chimney shaft on the
north gable wall of the original wing has been panéled
over.

On the second floor, a narrow hall stretches
across the front facade of the central block. Doors
open off of this hall into a large rectangular court
room in the center of the building, a grand jury room

over the south wing, and a law library over the north

wing. Details of interest on the second floor include

a coffered tin ceiling with cast iron column supports

and a variety of Victorian furniture in the court room.

:0f particular significance are the twelve jury chairs, -

three chairs behind the bench, and the witness chair.

All are bentwood chairs with tightly caned backs and

-seats.
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7.7 DESCRIPTION

According to the report prepared by Perry, Shaw
-and Hepburn, portions of the original roof framing
-survi&é. The roof over the main central section of
the building is not readily accéssible. The only
access point'is a small trap ‘secﬁred with screws in

the high ceiling of the court room. A second trap

in the north end of the building allows a limited view .

of the roof of the enlarged north wing. The framing
all dates-té the post-Civil War enlargement, but a

. small section of the masonry wall of the central

- section is'visible, as well as one portion of the

original dentil klock cornice.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Centreville Court House was constructed
circa 1792-94 and enlarged in 1876, It is believed
to be the oldest court house in Maryland in
continuous use. The building is an interesting
blend of Colonial and Victorian architecture, with
the basic form, fenestration pattern and brickwork
dating to the late 18th century, and the window
sash, balcony and decorative stonework dating to
the 1876 renovation. This renovation included
enlarging the building to the rear and roughly
doubling the floor area. Subsequent alterations
have left little if any visible evidence of the
original interior work, but much of the Victorian
detail has survived, as well as a complete set of
bentwood court room furniture with cane seats.

There is some uncertainty of‘the exact date
for the original building. As early as 1782 a

pvetition was filed requesting that the county seat

PN
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8.1 STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

be moved from Queenstown to a more convenient location.
The first significant levy of 51500 for erecting public
buildings was ordered in 1788, and in 1791 a . further
levy of BE600 was approved., The Court House was
 cer£ainly under construction by 1792 and may have
;beén complete by 1794. Dr. Radoff noted in Volume II
of his study of Maryvland Court Houses and records that
-one reference may indicate‘the Court House was still
-ﬁnder construction as late as 1796,
Extensive repairs were authorized in 1868 ard again'

in 1876. The latter renovation was undertaken by J.
“Crawford Neilson, a noted Balﬁimore architect, and

the construction was executed by Captain James Smith,

a Centreville builder. The costhof this work came to

$6800. 1In October 1877 a second contract was signed

‘with Smith to complete the court room.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY

STATE COUNTY

FELFORM PREPARED BY

NAME / TITLE
Orlando Ridout V, Historic Sites Surveyor

ORGANIZATION DATE
Queen Anne's County Historical Society 10/30/81
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE
CiTY CR TOWN ‘ STAYE
Centreville : _ Maryland

Field Notebook QA-XX: Recorded November 5, 1980.

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was official 1y created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 Ka,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438
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Queen Anne's County Court
House

Centreville, Maryland

Orlando Ridout V 1981

Rear view from Southwest
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THE COURTHOUSE
QUEEN ANNE'S COUNTY

DLOEST COURTHOUST I% CONTINUOUS VSE
IN THE STATE OF MARYLAND. THE QUL O'NG WAS
AUTHORIZED BY ACTS OF ASSEMOLY APTIR Tal
AEMDYAL OF THE COUNTY SEAT FROM QUEENSTOWN
T0 CHESTER ';II.I.S.I,H" COMTREYILLE (T was

$ Y
MER GRANDFATHER, WILLIAM SWEATMAN
COUNTY CCUMATRATOE 21 JLLEN LMD COuNTY
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